?

UNITED NATIONS Distr,

ECONOMIC R
AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

E/AC.42/SR.8
L April 1955

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

COMMITTEE ON THE ENFORCEMENT OF INTERVATIONAL ARBITRAL AWARDS
SUMMARY RLCORD OF THE il 5HiH MEETING
llcld at Headouurters, New York,
on Tuesduy, 8 March 1955, at 2.L45 p.m.
CONTENTS

Considuration of the question of the erforccment of interaastional
arbitral awards and, in particuler, of the Preliminury Draft
Convention on the Enforcement of Intcraational Arbitrul Avwcrds
prepared by the Internutional C.amber of Commerce (E/C.2/375 and Add.l,
E/AC.42/1 and E/AC.42/2, E/AC.42/L.2 to 10) (continu.d)

55-07440




E/AC.42/SR.8

English
Page 2
PRESENT :
Chajirman: Mr. LOOMES
Members: Mr. NISOT
Mr. TRWILLO
Mr. OSMAN
Mr. MEHTA
Mr. DENNEMARK
Mr. NIKOLAEV
Mr. WORTLEY

Australia

Belgium
Ecuador
Egypt
Indla
Sweden

Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics

United Kingdom of Great Britailr
and Northern Ireland

Observer from an inter~governmental organization:

Mr. HAZARD

International Institute for
the Unification of Private
Law

Representatives of non-governmental organizations:

Category A:
Mr. ROSENTHAL

Ca.tegory B and@ Register:

Mr. KOPPERS
Secretariat: Mr. SCHACHI'ER
Mr, CONTINI

International. Chamber of
Commexce

International Lsw Assoclation

Director, GCeneral Legal
Division

Secretary of the Committee




E/AC.L42/SR.8

English
Page 3

CONSIDERATION OF THE QUESTION OF T:E ENFORCEMENT OF INTERNATIONAL ARBITRAL AWARDS
AND, IN PARTICULAR, OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT CONVENTION ON THE ENFORCEMENT OF
INTERNATIONAL ARBITRAL AWARDS PRMPAPED BY THT JINTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
(E/C.2/373 and Add.l, E/AC.42/1 and EB/AC.U2/2, E/AC.42/L.2 to 16) (continued)

The CHAIRMAN asked the Commilitee to decide, for the guidance of the
drafting subecommittee, whether the clause proposed by the USSR concerning the
finality of the award (E/AC.42/L.2, point 4) should be included in article III
or in article IV,

Mr. NIKOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that its proper
context was article III since the finality of an award was one of the principal
conditions of recognition or enforcement.

Mr. MEHTA (India) agreed hut suggested that the clause should follow
the lines of article 1 (d) of the Gencva Convention of 1927.

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) drew attention to his proposal (E/AC.42/L.11)
and suggested that the drafting sub-camittee might be asked to modify it for
insertion in article III.

The CHAIRMAN suggested tb:t the drafting sub-committee should be
requested to prepare, in the light ol thke varions proposals, a suitable clause
for insertion in article III.

It was so agreed.

Mr. MEHTA (India) asked whether it was also proposed that article IV,
paragraph (e), should be shifted to article IIT.

The CHATRMAN observed that the question of annulment was separate frrm
that of finslity, and the paragraph would remain in article IV unless there was
e propusal to the contrary.




E/AC.42/8R.8
English
Page 4

Article VI of the preliminary draft-convention prepared by the International

Chamber of Commerce

Mr. NIKOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) referred to his
proposal for the addition of an asrticle protecting the operation of bilateral
agrecuents (E/AC.42/L.2, point 7). He agreed with the Chairman's statement at
the previous meeting that article VI dealt with the same subject and suggested
trat the drafting sub-committec should be asked to incorporate a clause modelled
oh his draft in that article,

Mr. NISO" (Belgium) and Mr, TRUJIILO (Ecuador) sald that the redraft
of article VI should also protect multilateral syrecments.

The CHAIRMAN suggested that as the Ccmmitteec was agrced on the
principle that existing agrecments should not be affected by the proposed
convention, the drafting subecommittee should be asked to prepare a suitable text.

It was so apgreed.

Final clauses (articles VII to X of the preliminary draft)

Mr. MEHTA (India) noted in comnexion with article VII that the 1927
Convention had restricted signature of the signatories of the 1925 Protocol.
If the latter was to remain in force, some provision analogous to that
contained in the 1927 Convention should be inserted in article VII.

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) thought that article VI would provide the necessary
protection for the signatories of the 1923 Protocol. '

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) recalled his proposal for a new article I
concerning the recognition of the validity of written agrecments (E/AC.4L2/L.8).
As such an article would make it unnecessary to mention the 1923 Protocol in
article VII, the question mentioned by the Indian representative should remain

in abeyance pending a decision on his proposal.




|

-

E/AC.42/SR.8
English
Page 5

Mr. NIKOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) saw no rcason for
the differentiation between Member and non-wember States in the first sentence
of article IXs He proposed thet the first seatence should be amended to read
"the present convention may be denounced by any State Party to it" (E/AC.42/L.2,
paragraph 6).

Mr. SCHACHTER (Seczetarict) reed out the wording currently used in
denunciation elauses of conventions prepared under the auspices of the
United Nations.

Mr. NIKOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that a text
following the standard clause just read would probably be acceptable.

The CHATRMAN suggested that the drafting sub-ccmmittee should be
requested to prepare a new version Af zrticle IX in consultation with the
Secretariat.

It was so agreed.

The CHATRMAN, speaking as the representative of Australia, introduced
his proposal (E/AC.42/L.7) for a new asticle to provide for the particular
position of federal States, a considerable part of whose legislative powers was
vested in their constituent units. The text £r lowed closely the wording of a
similar article prepared foi inclusior in the draft covenants on human rights.
The subject matter of the proposed srbitration convention wag not within the
Jurisdiction of the central Govermemt of federsl States, and unless such an
article as he proposed was included in the convention, Australia and many othewr
federal States would probably not be able to ratify the convention.

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) egreed that the article was necessary to enable
federal States to deal with certain crmstitutional difficulties and supported
the Australian proposel. The proposed convention should be so drafted as to
enable the largest possible number of commercially important countries to become
Parties to 1t. It would be regrettuble if a country like the United States of
America did not become a Party to> the conventic:.




E/AC.:2/3R.8
English
Page 6

Mr. NIKOIAEV (Union of Soviect Sociulist Republics) saild the Australion

proposal was unacceptable. It was not a new proposcl; o similur provision had
been introduced on carlicr occasions, curefully considered and rejected in a
number of org;.u8 of the United Nations. Parugraphs 1, 2, 3(u) and 3(b) of the
proposed articie rceproduced o text proposud by Austrgliu, Indic and the

United Statces of america for inclusion in the draft cevenant on humon rights at
the eighth session of the Crumission on Human Rights (E/2573, puragraph 246).
Parugroph 3(c) was the sume as the French umendment to that joint proposal
(E/2573, parograph 248) ond paregraph 4 reflected a Belglan umendment to the
same proposal (E/2573, parograph 247). The Commission on Human Rights had
rejected the principle of o "federal clause" and hod accepted o USSR propossl,
whdch it hud incorpnrated ot its tenth session in the draft covenunt on
economic, social and cultural rights and the draft covenunt on civil and
golitical rights us o separate article (E/2573, puges 65 and 71). The article
specified that the provisions of the covenant extendced to wll parts of federal
States without any limitations or execeptions. '

The Committee should follow the precedent established by the Commission on
Human Rights in the matter of the so-called "federol clcuse”. The inclusion
of u fedcral clause in the draft convention would conflict with the principles
of internctionol law becwuse it would produce. inequality between unitary States
and federal States in respect of the scope of their obligutions under the
convention. Morcover, the  inclusion of the "federel ¢lause" in the
convention on the enforsement of urbitral awards would render the convention
ineffective.

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) cgreed with the Soviet Union representotive., It
was o well-establishcd principle in internationul law that o federal State which
ratified a treaty was responsible for the constitutent units ond that it would

not ratify until satisficd thot the leiber would upprove. He could uol éee Liow
paragraph 4 of the Australian proposal (E/AC.k2/L.7) would work. If un

arbitral award was to be rendercd in Austrclia, a European firm would not know
whether the award was correct or not und whéther it would be enforced. Morcover,
there should be no differencc in principle tetween the trc.tment of federal and
unitary States. The Austrolian proposal should accordingly be rcjected.




E/AC.42/5R.8
English
Page 7

Mr. MEHTA (India) said that Indis was a federal State, but its law
seemed to differ from that of Australia. JLegisletion enacted by the Central
Goversuent of India applied to all the States, and the States could not pass
legislation inconsistent witn it. JIndia could therefore ratify the convention.
Other federal States might well consult their constituent units before ratifying,
but to include a special article 1. the corvention itself would give rise to
all manner of difficulties.

Wr. WORTLEY (United Kingdom) asked wrether vatification by the
fustraliap Parllament would be valid with regeid to federsl ugencies, if any, and
federal territories such as Camberra, if no A strallan State ratiiied.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as the rcpresentative of Australia, replied that
“he Australian Parlisment's exclusive povers extended to external affairs only.
Tt eould not ratify a convention waich it could not itself enforce. The
situation was quite different from that in Indiz. There were no federal agencles
Gmaling with tkhe matters to vhich the conveniion related and it wes unlikely

~bat many arbitral swards would be sought in Camberrz.

Mr. RCSENTHAL (International Chacber of Commerce) observed that the
praotical difficulty for businessmen enge.ed in international trade vas that -
“hey would not know with whom they were dealing in a federal State. They would .
f.ave trouble in escertaining whether a constituent unit bad or had not ratified

~hs nonvention.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as tke representatvive of Australia, doubted
#tsther businessmen would encounter any great complications of tiat kind.

He acknowledged that the Soviet Union representative had been right in
ta alauac wonnld prnduce inequality

*ticen §tates wholly bound by the convention and States only rartly bourd. But
¥r°1 the praetical point cf view, it would e better for a State to be bound
"1y in respect of certain of its ccnstituent units then not to be bourd at all.

Tie question una Lo% a new one, The Confevence on the Status of Stateless Fersors




™

L[t aLiany 11 48 AN 3 R 1N £ M )

L RS L e

s

E/AC.42/SR.8
English
Page 8

(The Cheirman)

had included a federal State clause in the convention it had prepared and there
wvas a similar clause in the Convention relating to the Status of Refugees., Those
precedents showed that the constitutional difficulties of certain States could be
considered in international law and that federal States should be allowed to
become Parties to conventions to the extent to which they were able to do so.

The Committee had been asked to draft a convemtion which would obtain the grestest
possible nunmber of ratifications; consequently, every effort should be made to
meet the difficultles of federal States.

The Australian proposal could perhaps have been drafted more coneisely, but
his delegation had felt it necessary to include all the proposals made during the
lengthy debates on the subject which had taken place in United Nations bodies and
to vhich the Soviet Union representative had very pertinently referred. A
shorter draft might have been dangerous.

Mr. WORTLEY (United Kingdcm) observed that some machinery would be
required to deal with the special position of federal States. Since mainly a
question of drafting seemed to be involved, the drafting sub-committee might be
asked to work out a suitable text. The difficulties seemed to very from federal
State to federal State; he would like to know, for example, whether all the
Soviet Republies would be bound if the Soviet Union Govermment signed the
convention.

Mr, NIKOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) replied that all the
Union and Autonomous Republics of the USSR would naturally be automatically bound
by such a signature. That wes why he had objected to a federal State clause,
which would leave it quite unclear which constitutent units were bound and which
were not. It would be only reasonable for a federal State to consult its
constituent units Ypfore proceediny to the preparation of the convention. If

the USSR was to be wholly bound by the econvention, it was natuval that it ghould

expect all other Parties to be. He agreed with the remarks of the representatives
of Sweden and the ICC.

He d1d4 not agree with the Belgian representative that the United States of
America would be unable to sign the eonventinn without a federal State clause,




E/AC.42/SR.8
English
Page 9

(Mr. Nikolaev, USSR)

for by virtue of article 6, paragraph 2, of tie United States Constitution a
treaty ratified by the Unionu becaue the suprewe l=w of the land,

The Australian representative's contcntions were not convincing. Australia
might not have Deen gble to sign the Convention relating to the Status of
Refugees, but it bad signed an iu“ernational jrstruucnt dealing far more closely
with local wmatters - the Convertiun for the Protection of Cultural Property
in the Event of Armed Conflict, concluded at The Hague in May 195k,

He could not agree with the suggestfon tooi tie clause in quastion should
be referred at that stage to the drafting sub-committee. TO wew a substantive
rather than a drafting question. It had been discusscd for wany years by the
Compission on Human Rights and a body of opinion had already been formed,
opposed to the inclusion of a federal State clcuse in United Nations conventions.

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) also opposed reference of the clause to the
drafting sub-coumittee.

Mr. MEETA (India) end Mr. WORTIEY (Uniied Kingdom) sgreed that some
formule should be found to cover the difficulties of federal States, and
suggested that the Belglan draft article (E/AC.%2/L.10/Rev.l) might be broadened
to include a reference to federal States.

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) and the CHALRMAN, cspeaking as the representative
»f Australia, had no objection to an amalgarstion of the Australian and Belgian
roposals,

Mr. OSMAN (Egypt), supported by Mr. WCRILFY (United Kingdom), suggested
that a far easier way of meeting the difficulties of federal States, whose
~onstitutions appeared to differ widely, woul. ve to allow them tc make

“eservations at the time of signature.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as the representative of Australia, said that
ile had no objection to that suggestion in principle.




E/AC.42/SR.8
English
Page 10

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) suggested that a very general clause might be
drafted allowing federal States to make reservations and elso allowing

reservations concerning the territorial application of the couvention.

Mr. MEHTA (Indie) remarked thet all objections would be met if the
reservations clause was sufficiently elastic.

Mr. DENNEMARK (uweden) seid that & vote on a matier of such substaace
would be unavoideble. The guestion should not be referred to the drafting
subeconamittee until the full Commitiee kad discussed it exheustively. He needed
more time to consider tle Australian proposal and the wholly new suggestion

about reservetions. The discussior s-ould therefore be deferred.

It was g0 agreed.

The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to consider the territorial
application clause proposed by Belgium (E/AC.42/L.10/Rev.l).

Mr. NISOT (Belgium), intrcducing his proposal, expleined that the
draft convention on the enforcement of foreign arbitral awards pre-supposed &
high degree of civilization on the part of the persons to whom it was to apply.
It could not reasonably be imposed on peoples who, as the Charter itself
recognized, needed to be guided by -an advanced Power. The Belgiasn proposal
would permit contracting States to exclude such peoples temporarily frcm the
application of the convention and to extend its provisions to them as soon as
their degree of development warranted.

Mr. OSMAN (Egypt) thought that instead of the Belgian draft, article 10
of the 1927 Convention might, with a few minor changes, serve the purpose.

Mr. DENNEMARK (Sweden) shared that view.




T T T T = o=y s are—— -

E/AC.42/SR.8
English
Page 11

Mr. NIKOLAEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) argued against
the Belyzian proposal. There was no good reason to restrict the application of
the futuwre ccuvention in the marper proposed. 'fhe (ommission on Human Righ.is -
8 more widely representative bLody than the yresent Committee - had at its
tenth session rejected a similar clause peuposed by Belgium for inclusion in
the draft international covegsnius on muwan r’_bts. Furthermore, in its
resolution 422 (V) the Geueral Assewrly hed requested the Commission on Huran
Rights to include in the dralt covenants a ciause stating that the provisions
of those instruments would extend to all deperdent territories of contracting
States. The colenial clause proyoced by Belgfum should therefore be rejected
toth because 1t would defeat thz purpoce of ihe draft convention and because i3
vas in direct contradiction with resc’ itien 422 (V).

ir. NISOP (Belgium) replied “hat tue UTSR represcatative’s venarks
vere irrelevant, Surely it cow.ush nOL be seriously suggested thet an arbitr: tion
eonvention should be made applicable without transitien to primitive peoples.

¥r. WORTLEY (United Kinglom) said that there was no ieed to raise

clde issues. From the practicul point of view, it was impossible to dictate
%o States for which of their territorjes ttey should assume the obligations
derlvirg from the conventicn, since +hey were not under a duty to ratify it in
the first place. The imporcent thing was that it should te clear to all to vwuat
®k"ent, each contracting State committed itself.

He proposed that the Australian and Pelgisn propesals should be discussed
together later, when members had had tiwe to tidnk them over.

it wvas so decided.

hrticle I11, paragraph (b) of the preliminary draft ~envention (resumed)

The CHATRMAN iavited ccnsiderstion of tke Egyptien, Indian and Swedssh
merdeds (E/AC.42/L.13, L.15 and L.16) to srticle III, paragraph (b).

On the suggesticn of Mr. NISGT (Belgium), Mr. CSMAN (Egypt) agreed to

“alet sy the words "by express provisionz" (par des stipulatioms expresses) 1.. hia

',.'x\ﬁ.:'r\.".‘:r‘i-,' Y-} b""\'ﬁ_ ﬂ‘\li‘"‘.'r.h'-("uﬂo

PO [ PR z!.i‘iljl‘il_

-

i

il

[,




T

e

E/AC.L2/SR.8
English
Page 12

Mr., TRUJILLO (Ecusdor) said that the word "otherwise™ in the Egyptian
amenduent implied that the law could allow an agresment that was not in

accordance witbk the law, which was manifestly absurb. It would be better to
change the closing passage of the amendment to read: "... in so far as the said
lav permits.”.

Mr¢‘DENNEMARK (sweden) said that, to meet the point raised at an
earlier meeting by the ICC representative, he wishod his amendment (E/AC.42/L.16)
to re.ate to article IV, not to article II1I. He saw very little difference
between his cn text and the amendments proposed by toe Egyptian and Indian
representatives, beyond the fact that under his own any procedure chosea by the
parties that was not expres:ly forbidden by the law would be permitted, which
was as it sbould be. Vhere there was no agreement between the parties, the law
of the country of arbitration would of course prevail.

Mr. IGHTA (India) drew attention to a very important difference: the
Swedish text did not provide that, where there was an agreetent between the
parties, the arbitral procedure would still be subject to control by the courts
of the country of arbitrstion. He would prefer the Egyptian and Indian
amernduments to be referred to the drafting subecommittee for final Qrafting.

Mr. BISOT (Belgium) peinted out thrc all three smendments differed
radically from the ICC text of articl: III, paragraph (b) in one respect. 1In
the ICC text, agreement between the parties prevailed over the law, wkereas
under the amendments the law woull. prevail at all times.

Mew DASTAMIIATY [ Tes
L YAV =) vy, vy \.L“

vag so. Indeed, the basic th:zis of the ICC was that, if the parties were able
to agree, they should be free to select the arbitral body to which they would

N B e c’ Mammmanan) avwns,d dhad dhand
[ 4+ viwuoive s agiecue v v veau

submit their dispute and to agree that the procedure would be gocverned by that
tody's rules, If the Committee insisted on limiting that freedom, he for his
part pveferred the Swe "ish srendment because 1t allowed the parties greater

iatitnde than either the Indian or the Egyptian smendment.

TR A T | i

i

R |

1



E/AC.42/3R.8
Epglish
Page 13

Mr. MEHTA (India) pointed out that if the Swedish amendment were to
be inserted in article IV, it would have to be changed from the positive to
the negative fcrm. It might then read as follows: "“that the composition of
the arbitral authority and the arbitral procedure were not in accordance with
the agreement of the rarties, to the extent and in the manner allowed by the law
of the country in which arbitration tcck place, or, failing agreement between
the parties in this respect, that the composition of the arbitral esuthority
and the arbitral procedure were not in accordance with the law of the country in
which arbitration took place." The word "forbidden", to which the Swedish
repregentative attached some importance, would have to be eliminated.

Mr. OSMAN (Egypt) said tbat he had no objection to having the substance
of his amendment placed in article IV instead of in article III, paragraph (v),
s0 that the burden of proof would fall on tke unsuccessful, rather than on the
successful party. He pointed out, bowever, that articles III and IV both laid
down conditions which had to be fulfilled if the award was to be enforceable.
It might be more logical to group together in one article conditions applicable
10 tbe country in which the evard was made, and in snother those applicable to
the country in whieh it was to be enforced. A third article might then be
added, indieating whether the successful or the unsuccessful party bore the
burdan of proof in each particular case.

The CHAIRMAN noted that there was general agreement on the principle
that, to the extent permitted by the law of the country in which arbitration
took place, the parties should be free to cboose the rules of procedure which
vere to be applicable to the arbitration.

He proposed that the dratting sub-commiitee shculd be asked to work cut
a suitable clause embodying that principle, in the light of the amendments

submitted and the views expressed in debate.

It was so decided.

The meeting rose &t - :) p.O.




